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|DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The present United (or First) Methodist Church fmnting south on
Church Street in Warren, Rhode Island, was built in 18Lii, the second
church building on the site. The strrture is a long (62' by 78')
gable-roofed, two-story tuilding with a full two-story Creek Revival
portico and a steeple and spire huilt up of modified Ceor-ian elements.
The view of the building as seen from the Town Common is dramaticj
adjacent eighteenth-century and Victorian buildings combine to establish
it in an important historic environment. ’

Exterior:

g ’ Four colossal hand-hewn wooden Doric columns set upon b%'-square
granite bhases rise 32' to support a wide plain architrave with a narrow
dentil-band below a plain frieze which supports a plain cornice framing
the pediment. Four panelled pilasters divide the fagade wall into bays,
each of which contains a sinele 9-over-9-sashed window on the ground
level and a two-story compound 9-over-9 window ahove, all with heavy,
‘molded lintels. This pattern of wall vilasters and fenestration is con-
tinued on the sides of the church. Flush toards are used for the front
wall cover; the sides are clantoarded. ’

435

The main front entrance is not criginal. The original flat-headed
enframement containing massive, elght-panelled doutle doors was replaced
in 1958 by the present doorway of smaller scale, carrying a broken-
scrolled pediment and containing smaller doors heneath a transom. (An
additional entrance on the church's east side was closed in 1869.) On
the north end of the. church huilding, the sanctuary projects 6!, with
no windows except a small round-headed one at the northwest corner,
ncar a plain rear entrance to the vestry.

e

The steeple, of retardgtaire Georgian form has three square, gradu-
ated stages leading to an octagonal cupola-base for the small spire with
a simple arrow weathervane; the spire's termination is 130! from the -
ground, The. steeple's first level is a horizontally-rusticated squg~éﬁilJilQ/
indented at its angles, with narrow trivle openings on each sidef(?l :

O
contains a great hronze *ell placed there by the town in 1855, ,,/én q$5§@v
original cost of & 700,00, to enahle the clock to sound the h r,.tﬁgg§j>’
This tell was originallv rocked by a great wooden wheel, to swimp the\® «ﬁ

striker inside; today the tell is hit by a metal hammer operat éﬂby a \
rove pull. A widely-projecting cornice originally carrying acr /yia\3»1@§ )
(now removed) crowms this stare of the steeple. < ‘§§ -

The steevle's second level has panelled corner pilasters and 1
projecting panels-containing acroteria motifs on each side, below the
four clock-faces, which are painted black and have their original gold
mmerals. Inside, naturally, is the clock room, where in 18L8 the town
placed iron clock-works (inoperative now and awaiting repair) with 300-
pound weights.

(See Continuation Sheet.)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Historically, the Warren church is the First Hethodist church in
Rhode Island and the third in New England. -

The present church tuilding of 18L)L stands on land given by John .
Luther in 179k and on the site of the first church building, dedicated
on September 2l of that same vear. The story of Methodism in Warren be-
gan in 1789 when the Reverend Daniel Smith, an associate of the Reverend
Jesse Lee, a noted pioneer of Methodism, held the first meeting in Kicka-
muit, now Bast Warren, Ry 1793, the Reverend Philip Wager had been ap-
pointed first minister of Warren Church. By 18Ll his little church had
reen outgrown, and in that year--during a period of great commércial
prosperity in Warren, generated by sea trade, ship-tuilding and whaling--
the congrepgation decided to arect a larger building,

This tuilding is an excellent examnle of the vernacular architec-
ture (here in the Greek Revival style) which is an important part of
our American heritage. Not only is the church an outstanding archi-.
tectural landmark, but it is located in the heart of Warren's historic
waterfront area, where enough of the town's early building remains to
warrant designation as an historic area. A full survey of the whole
area is now heing completed for the Rhode Island Historical Preser-
vation Commission. R

This handsome church, opening onto the Town Common, facing Church
Street quietly lined with small-scale houses dating from the 17L0's to
the 1880's, is an irreplaceable element in this close-knit historic
neighborhood. - ' ‘




Torm of Warren, Rhode Island:

200th Anniversary of Warren, Rhode Island

(Jarren, Rhode Island, 19L7).
Hethodist Eviscopal Society, Warren, Rhode Island:
Historv of the Church (Warren, Rhode Island, n. d.).

Raker, Virginia:

Highlights in the

The Providnce Journal (Providence, Rhode Island), March 1, 1971, p. 29.
The History of Warren, Rhode Island,

in the War ofthre

Revolution, 1776-1783 (Warren, Rhode Island, 1901).

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

COORDINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY | O DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
] » ” ) ’ » o L '
NW I b3 Lo | 71 17 0z W
NE o v ” o ’ ”»
SE o ¥ ” [} v ”
SW [ » » o ’ ”

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE O‘F NOMINATED PROPERTY:

Less than one acre

ILIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE: CODE COUNTY SR CODE
/\\EuxLy//
STATE: CODE COUNT/Y/" CODE
STATE: CODE | couNfy/ cODE
~edl
STATE: CODE
2 FOR PARE
NAME AND TITLE:
Zlizabeth S.
ORGANIZATION DATE v
Rhode Island Historical Preservatlon Commission larch 29, 1971
STREET AND NUMBER:
State House, 90 Smith Street
CITY OR TOWN: ) STATE CODE
Providence Rhode Islaﬂd 02903 : L)y

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law

89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service.

level of significance of this nomination is:

O State ’K_J Local [7]

3 ?(:27\3S§§§Q\Qﬂ$§$¢v~\

The recommended

Name _{ WEDNGNE
Titte State Liaison Officer
Date June 8, 1971

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.

au)?L/ ﬁ74/////a/

Chxef Office of Archeology and Historic P;éser%non

AUG 12 1971

Date
ATTEST: /
4?7¢£/f / ~
Keeper of/The National Regxsf T
Date JHL 2 9 1974

GPO 901.087

43S

SNOITLONYJ LS NI



Form 10-300c UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE
(July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Rhode Island

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES |SOoUNTY

Bristol
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM FOR NPS USE ONLY
(Continuation Sheet) -1 Y NVRER okl
1 10 - f f
v11.94.2/d, OO ) SZ/m/')l
(Number all entries) /! “ r ‘ (A A

7. Description.

The smaller third level of the steeple repeats that of the clock
level and is pierced hy 6-over-6 windows of hattered shape with heavy
architraves. Upon this stase rises the delicate octagonal cupola, with
panelled pilasters and eight windows, which supports the panelled, wood-
sheathed spire and tre weathervane with its gilded arrov.

During renovations in 1970 the acroteria upon the cornice ‘of the
bell tower (and these may have orlvlnally heen a reneated adornment at
the upper levels of the steeple) were removed due to deterioration and
have not been replaced,

Interior.

The church auditorium is reached hy stairs at either side of a
large, high front hall which contains a balconv and a catwalk from it to
the tell._rope. Staircases have massive turned newel posts and rectangular
wood balusters that continue across the balcony. Walls are plastered
down to a wainscot of horizontal flush toards.

The auditorium, designed to seat 500, is nearly square, measwring
601-6" wide and 65'-6" deep. The pew plan is laid out with a wide center
alsle and side aisles; the original box pews are still in place. The

side halconies have plaln fronts of recessed mnelling and are each sup-
vorted hy four round wooden columns with Doric capitals. The original
choir loft or rear balcony is now closed off by a solid wall.

An 187k stereoscopic photogranh of the altar wall is of great in-
terest, showing that area hefore the present organ was installed in 1907.
This shous painted trompe-l'ceil decoration representing two great Ionic
columns set in front of a pilastered wall; these columns suprort an en-
tablature with frieze and dentils helow a nanelled ceiling. The painted
perspective creates an illusion of preat depth in what is actuwally a very
shallow nlatform. This old view also shows details painted on the pi-
laster canitals on each side of the platform, a Greek-key frieze around
the panelled ceiling and a tand of dentils on the contimous entablature--

Today, two colossal free-standing fluted Ionic columns’ stand at the
rear of the auditorium, slightly forward (north) of the choir“balcony and
the curving vestirule wall; they support the main cornice of the audlto—
rium at that end of the building. The now-vanished painted colnmUS‘may At
have teen intended to echo these. e

Original colors of the auditorium, of its elaborately palnuec
trompe-1l'oell pulpit area and its ornamental ceiling are unknown. In the
refurbishing of 1951 the now coved, originally compartmented, ceiling
was painted a pale blue-green. The walls are soft beige. Stronger

(See Continuation Steet 2,)
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all seen today without this ornamentation. Church records suvrest “that (. I
all these elaborations mav have heen added in 1869. P LR
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Description.

colors are introduced through use of dark red velvel window drapery,

scarlet carpeting and dark red vew cushions. The box pews are a soft
grey-green and have their original carved, curvilinear mahogany arm-

rests.

Repair to the interior of the steeple has been extensive. All
the main vertical members here have either reen revlaced or repaired.
Elsewhere, horizontal metal cross-pieces have teen added where required;
iron brackets have been used; and some of the great 12"x12" wood heams
and rafters have teen replaced. In the church attic, the original wood
vegs tvine rafters and braces together are, however, still performing
their function in many vlaces.

GPO 901.082



Form 10-300a UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE
(July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Rhode Island

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES [couNTv o
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER DATE

(Continuation Sheet)=3

(Number all entries)

1. Name.,
Common: Warren United Methodist Church-- Addition of Parsonage to
Original Nomination
And/or Historic: First Methodist Church

2. Location: 27 Church Street, Warren

3. Classification: Same as on original nomination

4. Owner of Property: Same as on original nomination

5. Location of Legal Description: Same as on original nomination

6. Representation in Existing Surveys: Same as on original nomination

7. Description.
Condition: Excellent, Unaltered, Original Site

The Methodist Parsonage is to the west of the Church. The main part
of the building is 25'6" by 33', the rear projection 19' by 17', and the
east projection 5' by 17'. These combine to form the precise rectilinear
masses of the Italian Villa style. The parsonage has a one-story veranda
extending from the east projection to the front of the building, is a full
two stories in height, and is entirely flat roofed. The foundation is of
slate stone cemented over and grooved on the outside to imitate granite,
the walls are wooden clapboards over frame construction, the two chimnies
are of brick, and the front steps are of granite.

The exterior detail is typical of the Italian Villa style and the
1858 date of construction. The entrance, situated in the corner created
by the east projection, is framed by sidelights and a cornice supported by
four scrolled brackets. A heavy cornice supported by two scrolled brackets
of the type above the doorway crowns each of the six over six windows while
a projecting sill with a pair of curved brackets beneath further emphasizes
the opening. By far the most outstanding element of the architecture is
the elaborately scrolled brackets beneath the main cornice with a smaller
version appearing on the porch. The S-scroll design from which stylized
leaves gracefully extend is the greatest achievement of the carpenter's
skill and the designer's originality. On the veranda the fluted octagonal
posts finished with a lamb's tongue are joined by flat arches, have a
moulded entablature and base, and are distinctly non-classical, all very
much in the robust character of the Italian Villa style. Mouldings also
embellish the cornerboards and water table. Inside the parsonage the most
noteworthy feature is the staircase with its vigorously turned
mahogany newel post and turned balusters. Otherwise the de
plan are simple and typical of the period and style.

b &

3/1‘% 3

REELEVE@
Mar 2 1973

NATIONAL
REGISTER
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8. Significance.

The house was built in 1858 by the Methodist Church as a parsonage
and has remained as such to the present. It has suffered no remo%deling
and all of the exterior detail has been preserved intact. As it still
serves its original purpose and maintains its original appearance, the
parsonage is a fine vernacular example of the Italian Villa style.

This is one of the few instances in the history of vernacular building
where the names of the men who were responsible for the design and execution
of the building are known. A building contract between the Building
Committee of the Methodist Church and the carpenter survives. Ezra Millard
Martin (1818-1900) of Warren agreed to construct the building following the
plans and detailed drawings of "Hoar and Prown". Lewis Thomas Hoar (1810~
1881) was Martin's partner in a local lumber business and the Drown referred
to was either Henry Francis (1818-1899) or Joshua Champlin (1821-1907),
brothers and both carpenters in Warren. This involvement on the part of
Lewis Hoar as both a lumber dealer and draftsman or designer was a typical
combination for the period. None of these men were architects. They were
born in and spent their lives in the immediate area and the parsonage
reflects their provincialism and lack of professional training. Their
version of the Italian Villa has been modified in accordance with their
knowledge and capabilities. They did succeed in capturing the basic
qualities of the style and showed their individuality in the truly splendid

brackets beneath the cornices. xxml
W 5 )2 (73
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The parsonage is as fine an example of vernacular architecture in
the Italian Villa style as the church is in the Greek Revival. Moreover,
the parsonage survives unaltered. The church and parsonage are considered
one property and together form an integral part of Warren's historic
waterfront district.

9. Major Bibliographical References.

Building Contract Between the Building Committee of the Methodist Episcopal
Church of Warren and Ezra M. Martin, January 27, 1858,

The New-England Mercantile Union Business Directory, 1849.

Record of Deaths, Town of Warren.

The Warren Directory, 1876, 1881.

10. Geographical Data: Same as on original nomination.
11. Form Prepared by:
Mrs. Richard P. Sullivan, Grants Administrator

Rhode Island Historical Preservation Commission January 30, 1973
John Brown House, 52 Power Street
Providence, Rhode Island 02906 Code: 44

12. State Liaison Officer Certification

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the National Historic
Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-665), I hereby nominate this
property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has
been evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the
National Park Service. The recommended level of significance of this
nominati is : State.

Name ’Jf Q).;L‘ C Q/K\B \K\\ Q,\h\:q(iw\

Title State Liaison Officer

Date February 14, 1973
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